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This is the Closing Investigative Memorandum.

This case was predicated on a referral from HHS/Office of Audit Services conceming grant fraud
in the Head Start Program. An audit performed revealed that Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc.

. (Cen-Tex) paid bonuses and expenses without adequate support or authorzation. On May 10,
2004, this office recetved additional information regarding Windy Hill, the former Executive
Director of Cen-Tex from 1993 through January 5, 2002. She became the HHS Head Start
Associate Commissioner on January 6, 2002.

The audit rajses questions about the financial management of Cen-Tex duning Hill's tenure, as
well as questions as to whether she benefited {inancially as a result of the program's violations.
In addition, it was alleged that Cen-Tex improperly drew down and deposited federal funds that
it was not legally entitled to receive.

Intervicws were conducted of current and former board members, employees, and contractors of
Cen-Tex. Cen-Tex records were reviewed. OAS auditors reviewed Cen-Tex records and
participated in interviews. Audit work papers were prepared by OAS based on documents
obtained and reviewed. ‘

This case was declined by the US Attorney’s office in Austin, Texas and the District Attorney’s
office in Bastrop, Texas due to a lack of resources and not meeting the minimum guidelines
established by these offices.

The investigation revealed several areas of concern which are addressed in detail in a final
report. Exhibits were provided which support the report findings. This report was provided to
Dr. Wade Horn of ACF.  Hill provided a response to ACF addressing these areas of concern.
The Office of Investigations did not obtain a copy of Hill’s responses. On May 27, 2005, Hill
resigned from her position as Head Start Associate Commissioner.

This case will be closed.

This memorandum is the property of the Office of Investigations and iz loaned to your agency; It and its contents may
not be reproduced without written permission. The memorandum Is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and its disclosure to
unauthorized persons is prohibited, Public availability shall ba datermined under 5 U.5.C. 552,
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This case was investigated as possible violations of Title 18 U.5.C. 641 (Public Money,
Property, or Records), 18 U.5.C. 371 (Conspiracy), and 18 U.8.C. 666 (Theft or Bribery
Conceming Programs Receiving Federal Funds).
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Section A — NARRATIVE
Issue

This case was predicated on a referral from HHS/Office of Andit Services (OAS) concerning
grant fraud in the Head Start Program. An audit performed by an independent public accountant
revealed that Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc. (Cen-Tex) paid bonuses and expenses without
adequate support or authorization. :

On May 10, 2004, this office received additional information regarding Windy Hill, the former
Executive Director of Cen-Tex from 1993 through January 5, 2002. She became the HHS Head
Start Associate Commissioner on January 6, 2002. The audit raised questions about the financial
management of Cen-Tex during Hill's tenure, as well as questions as to whether she benefited
financially as a result of the program's violations. Tn addition, it is alleged that Cen-Tex
improperly drew down and deposited federal funds that it was not legally entitled to receive.

Background

The Head Start Program is a federal program that prowdcs funding for early learning and other
services that benefit children of low-income familics. Cen-Tex is a non- profit organization that
provides child development services to children 1-5 years of age. The Head Start program is
Cen-Tex’s only major program. It provides services for children in four counties and has been
operating since 1992. For the year ending January 31, 2002, Cen-Tex’s Head Start funding
totaled $2.1 million and its total revenue and contributions from all sonrces was $2.8 million.

Cen-Tex has a governing Board of Directors (Board). The Board is responsible for appointing
the executive director, establishing policies, and managing Cen-Tex’s business and affairs. The
Executive Director is responsible for administering Cen-Tex"s programs, finances and personnel
within the framework of the policies, principles, and practices established by the Board.

The Department of Health and Human Serviccs, Administration for Children and Families
(ACF), and an independent public accountant (IPA), Lockart, Alchley & Associates examined
Cen-Tex’s financial records during 2002. At Cen-Tex’s request, ACF’s Dallas regional office
performed a review of Cen-Tex’s financial management system and completed a report on their
findings. (See Exhibit 4) '

On December 7, 2002, the [PA issued its audit report of Cen-Tex’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ending January 31, 2002. The rcport identified ten reportable conditions, of which
TPA considered two to be matenal weaknesses, In the prior 3 years, the accounting firm of
Kolheim, Rogers & Taylor (Rogers) had performed financial audits for Cen-Tex and did not
identify any reportable conditions.

Investipative Activity

OI and OAS conducted an on-site review of records as well as several interviews of those
connected with Cen-Tex. Scveral issues were investigated which included but were not limited
to the initial allegations. Interviews included Hill, current and former Cen-Tex employees,
former contractors, and Board members. OAS met with the IPA to discuss details of their



findings. A summary of the reports of interview is found in Section E-Witnesses and Evidence.
Interviews were conducted in an effort to gather testimonial evidence as to the validity of the
allegations. Hill's interview and response to allegations are located at Exhibits 1 and 2. ACF
financial review work papers were reviewed. Cen-Tex records were reviewed on-sitc. This
included financial and personnel records, Cen-Tex policy and procedure manuals.

The investigation addresses eight mam areas of interest, which will be explained in more detail
below.

Areas of Interest

Request for Reimbursement for expenses for tuition fees for Fall 2001 semester and Spring 2002
at §t. Edwards Universityl in Austin, Texas.

On October 19, 2001, Windy Hill filled out a purchase requisition for Fall 2001 tvition fees in
the amount of $2,396.00. Historically, checks for Hill’s tuition went directly to St. Edwards
Universtty. In this instance, she requested reimbursement to herself. St. Edwards’ records
indicate that Hill did not regmtex for or attend classes in Fall 2001. Evidence suggests that Hill
used a copy of a bill from a previous semester and attached it to this purchase request. The
purchase request form states that the reimbursement is for “Tuition fee for Fall 2001 semester.”
A check was 1ssued to Hill in the amount of $2,396.00.

On December 6, 2001, a check was cut to St. Edwards in the amount of $1,262.00 for an Intemnet .
course for Spring 2002. At the time of Hill’s purchase request, evidence shows that she knew
that she would be taking the job in Washington, D.C. Cen-Tex paid for a course using Head
‘Start funds that Hill would take when she was no longer employed by Cen-Tex.

Evidence includes the fact that on November 29, 2001, Hill signed her SF Form 278, the
Executive Branch Personnel Public Financial Disclosure Report. In addition, Hill went to the
Dallas Regional office in early December 2001 to discuss her plan for Cen-Tex once she left for
her new position in Washington, D.C. These datcs show that she had knowlcdge that she would
not be working for Cen-Tex during Spring 2002. Thercfore, Cen-Tex paid for a course using
Head Start funds after Hill left the agency.

The supporting exhibits can be found at Exhibits 5-9.

Bonuses

- Bonuses were reviewed for the time period 1999 through 2002. The review showed that Hill
received bonuses each year, Cen-Tex personnel policies reflected that employees could receive
up to a [0 percent bonus annually. However, the review showed that Hill was the only one who
received these annual bonuses, and hers exceeded 10 percent. Bonuses for the Executive
Director were to be approved by tlze Board.



FY 1999 Bonusg

For FY 1999, Hill received a 14 percent bonus check dated June 6, 2000 in the amount of
$6,644.25. Board minutes for April 12, 2000, signed by Hill, state that the Board moved by
consensus to accept and approve the Executive Director’s overall performance appraisal of
“Outstanding”.

On June 5, 2000 there are unsigned munutes, which state that the Board moved by unanimous
consensus to accept and approve the annval performance appraisal of the Executive Director and
- performance enhancement incentive award. Handwritten notes for these minutes were
determined to be from Sandy Scott. '

Hill submitted a purchase requisition for this bonus on June 7, 2000. There is no percentage
written in the Board minutes or handwritten minute notes. The percentage of the benus (14
percent) was writien on this purchase requisition by Hill. This investigation found no evidence
to suggest that this check was reported for tax purposes through a payroll W-2 or a form 1099,

Bonus work papers prepared by OF and OAS can be Jound at Exhibits 27 and 28. Supporting -
documentation for the FY 1999 bonus can be found at Exhibits 29 through 33. :

FY 2000 Bonus

For FY 2000, Hill received a 14 percent bonus check dated April 24, 2001 in the amount
$7,170.38. In an Interoffice Memorandum dated March 17, 2001 from Hill to Board Chairman
Clinton Wright, Hill requests a 13 percent performance incentive. This memo indicates that this
percentage is “one percent greater than last year’s award.” Records indicate that the prior year’s
bonus was actually 14 percent.

Board minutes dated March 17, 2001 and signed by Windy Hill indicate a motion to accept and
approve the Executive Director’s annual performance evaluation and authorize a performance
cnhancement incentive. The notes for this Board meeting were also taken by Sandy Scott and
the minutcs were signed by Hill. No amount or percentage to be awarded for this performance
incentive is found in Board minutes and meeting notes.

On April 24, 2001, Hill submitted a purchase requisition for this performance enhancement. A
check for the bonus was cut on that same day. Taxes were not withheld on this bonus; however,
Hill was issued a corrected W-2 after Cen-Tex identified this problem. This was discovered by
an IPA after Hill was no longer employed at Cen-Tex.

Supporting documentation for the FY 2000 bonus can be found at Exhibits 34 through 39.

FY 2001

For FY 2001, Hill received a 13.445 percent bonus. The audit found no Board minutes or Board
meetings to support this bonus. A purchase requisition was submitted by Hilt on January 11,
2002 and a check with the same date was issucd in the amount of (jp) (&;) Records reflect that
this purchase requisition and check were completed by Hill after suc naa degun her job in
Washington, D.C. Hill returned to the Cen-Tex office over the weekend following her official



appointment in Washington, D.C. Interviews indicate that Hill met with Board members that
same weekend and they were unaware that Hill had accepted and had already begun working in
Washington, D.C. After Cén-Tex discovered that Hill had not been issued a 1099, an amended
one was mailed to her.

Supporting documentation for the FY 2001 bonus can be found at Exhibits 40 through 4.2,

Over the same weckend, Hill submitted a purchase requisition and was reimbursed $500.00 in
miscellaneous “expenses” without supporting documentation. This was also dated January 11,
2002. This is explained in more detail in the “purchase requisitions” section.

Hill began employment with Heatth and Human Services on January 6, 2002. At this point, the
Board did not know that she had accepted the job in Washington, D.C. Hill met with two of the
Board members the morning of Saturday, January 12, 2002, and told them she would decide
about the job by the end of January. According to interviews, the Board members found out -
through a ncwspaper article later that same weekend that Hill had already begun working for
Health and Human Services,

The investigation disclosed that Cen-Tex employees also thought Hill was still in ¢harge of Cen-
Tex and that she was on vacation unti] the end of January 2002, and then would take an 18-
month leave of absence. Hill instructed Cen-Tex employees to tell anyone who called, including
Board members, that she was on vacation until the end of January 2002, and then would be on an
extended leave of absence. After Hill left, she communicated to employees through Sandy Scott.
Employee meeting notes from different sources support these instructions from Hill, '

During an intervicw with Hill she was questioned as to why she was paid out of the general
account for some bonuses and the payroll account on other occasions. Hill stated that she
thought she could decide how she would be paid. She stated that she did not do this in order to
avold paying payroll taxes.

Vacation Pay

- The employee handbook states that “a maximum of 80 hours of vacation time may be carried
over from year to year. Vacation in excess of 80 hours must be taken, or it will be lost at the end
of the calendar year. Accrued but unused vacation in excess of 80 hours will not be paid upon
termination of employment for any reason.”

Hill reccived a payment for vacation hours over the 80 per year allowed by the employee
handbook. Hill was paid for a tota! nS'“’_” varation hours during her last 3 months of her.
employment, of which 634 hours ) were paid in excess of the 80 hours of vacation

time allowed by Cen-Tex policy. “Lnis aoes not include a January 1997 payment for 225
vacation hours ﬁ_f) (,) received by Hill. Meeting minutes in 1996 and 1997 did not indicate
that the Board aisctsswu ur approved any vacation payments, although a vacation-hout carryover
was approved a year earlier, in January 1996. While Board member Hodges and Wright signed
this check, Board minutes did not indicate any discussion or approval of this payment.

Documents reflected that the agenda for the October 31, 2001 Board meeting, listed accrued
vacation pay as an item. At that board meeting, Hill requested that her leave, along with the
leave of Sandy Scott, Mary Garcia-Todd, and Rebecca Werchan (two managers), be paid.



Interviews with Scott, Todd, and Werchan indicate that they did not request for this leave to be
paid. In addition, Todd stated that she was saving her leave to use later and she did not want to
be paid for her leave. Hill just handed each of them a check and stated it was for their vacation
accrued over 80 hours. Hill was paid for 432 hours initially, Scott 60 hours, Todd 76 hours, and
Werchan § hours, '

The unsigned typcd minutes indicate that the accrual vacation pay was approved with Board
. member Ken Blaschke abstaining from the motion. A check dated November 1, 2001 in the
amount of . \LJ Llw was issued to Hill for 432 hours of vacation pay.

An mterview with Board metnber Ken Blaschke indicates that he was against paying this amount
of leave for Hill since it was such a large amount. He told Hill that she should just take the
leave.- Blaske felt the Board members who were close to Hill, Hodges and Wright, wanted to -
help her out. During an interview with Hill, she stated that she requested to take a few months
off and the Board decided to pay her for her leave instead.

Interviews of Board members and reviews of Board meeting minutes indicate that Hill never
requested |eave, only having her leave paid, Records indieate that Hill’s payment also included -
an out of schedule payroll check in the amount of © ﬁw’f@ None of the others who had their
lcave paid received an additional payroll check. imerviews indicate that Board members were
not awarc that leave was paid other than this initial request.

On December 31, 2001, Williams issued a check to Hill in the amount of © w‘i& yased on
what Hill instructed her to do. Tha fallawing day, Williams found the check voided and a new
check issued in the amount of Hill had reissued the check and changed the amount of
taxes taken out. Fewer taxes were taken vut of the second check, which was cut by Hill.
According to Williams, Hill would have had to manually change the taxes to make this change in
the payroll system.

There were no Board minutes to support this payment. The 176 hours of accrued vacation were
not in the system. The investigation revealed that these hours were added by Hill to retroactively
increase booked accruals one hour per pay period for 176 pay periods. A memo from the payroll
clerk, Suc Williams, to Hill states that vacation accruals increased to 12 hours per month “per the
Board.” There are no Board minutes to support this in¢rease. The adjustrment was issued based
on information provided to Williams from Hill. According to Williams, Hill showed her a -
docurnent and then calculated this amount. Hill instructed Williams to cut a check for this’
amount.

On January 10, 2002, a check was cut by Hill in the amount of * b& »r payment of 142
hours of accrued leave. No documentation or Board approval was ounu co support this payment
of accrued leave. This check was cut by Hill upon her return to the Cen-Tex office after Hill had
begun workmg n Washington, D.C. :

During the interview with Hill she stated that from December 18, 2001 through January 6, 2002,
she was rarely in the office and was mainly doing personal things to prepare for her move to
Washington. During this time period she did not submit any leave requests.

OAS and OI vacation accrual work papers can be found at Exhibits 43 and 44, Supporting
documentation can be found at Exhibits 45 through 53.



Extra payroll checks

In November 2001, Hill received two out-of-schedule payroll checks. On November 1, 2001,
Hill was paid for 432 hours of vacation hours. With this leave accrual pay, an additional out-of-
schedule payroll of ! Mp as included with this check. At that time, three other Cen-Tex
cmployees were pasu wn won wave exceeding 80 hours, Hill was the only employee to receive
this additional payroll with accrued leave payment. An interview with Sue Williams, the payroll
clerk, indicates that Hill cut these payroll checks. According to Williams, Hill would have had
to manually put in the amount paid. Hill and Williams were the only Cen-Tex employees who
cut checks. ' '

On November 15, 2001, Hill received a payroll adjustment in the amount of $2,544.48. This
adjustment is unexplained and there is no support for this additional pay.

Williams and Hill were the only ones who cut checks for Cen-Tex during that time

period. Hill had authority to sign checks under 31,000.00 with only her signature. Checks
over $1,000.00 needed the signatures of Board members Jewell Hodges and/or Clinton Wright.
Interviews with these Board members indicate that if a check had a purchase requisition signed
by Hill, they would typically sign the check without question.

The additional payroll adjustment can be found at Exhibit 50. The additional out-of-schedule
payroll added to the acerued vacation pay can be found at Exhibit 49.

Purchase Requisitions without Proper Documentation

OMB Cireular A-122 states that to be allowable under an award, costs must, “be adequately
documented. "

The Cen-Tex Procedures Manual stated “routine.. purchases must have prior approval from the
Executive Director or her designee... and non-routine purchases of supplies, equipment, or
services may only be made with Executive Director approval.” The revised Policies and
Procedures Manual, gffective October 31, 2001, stated, “'The Executive Director provides final
approval of all requisitions.”

The Cen-Tex Procedures Manual also stated that purchase orders, invoices, and supporting
documentation would be submitted to the Executive Director for payment and check signing. 4
second signature is obtained from a designated Board member when appropriate.

Board minutes dated April 12, 2000, give Hill sole cheek signing authority on checks less than
$1,000.00. All checks over $1,000.00 must have a second signature of an appropriate Board
rmember,

Interviews of Board members indicate that little oversight was used on signing checks. If a
purchasc requisition was signed by Hill, the Board members would often sign without reviewing
it closely. In many instances, the Board did not exercise their fiduciary duty to properly monitor
Cen-Tex. Board member interviews can be found at Exhibits 10-14.

During fiscal year 2001, Hill submitted several non-payroll Purchase Requisitions. Cen-Tex
issued 40 checks to Hill during that fiscal year for $36,606.65, Of this amount, $27,770.85 had

Vi



inadequate or no support. This inctudes payment for two bonuses without supporting
documentation. (See OAS work paper at Exhibit 54)

After starting her job with Health and Human Services on January 6, 2002, Hill returned to the
Cen-Tex office over the following weekend. On Friday, January 11, 2002, Hill signed purchase
requisitions and cut checks to herself for a bonus (87,155.00) and for “Expenses” of $500,00.
There is no supporting documentation for either purchase requisition.

Board members Jewell Hodges and Clinton Wright signed these checks; however, at that time -

they were unaware that Hill had accepted and started the job in Washington, D.C. Hill never

submitted a letter of resignation and did not notify the Board that she had accepted the position

as Associate Commissioner of Head Start. At the time that Board members Hodges and Wright
 signed these checks they did not know that Hill was no longer working for Cen-Tex.

From February 2001 through December 2001 Hill submitted purchase requisitions for the
payment of her cell phone usage. For these 10 months, Hill’s cell phone bill was $4,050.00,
which averages $405.00 per month. Support documentation for these payments appears to be
inadequate.

An QAS work paper for Hill's non-payroll Purchase Requisitions for FYE January 31, 2001 can
be found at Exhibit 54.

The purchase requisition and check for “Expenses” dated January 11, 2002 can be found at
Exhibit 57. The purchase requisition and check for the bonus dated January 11, 2002 can be
Jound at Exhibits 40 and 41.  The OAS schedule of cell phone payments work paper can be
Jound at Exhibit 55,

Tax Issues

The IRS requires that individual taxpayers report all income. This includes wages and bonuses.
The Form 4582 jnstructions state if the employer doesn't issuc a W-2 for the bonus, the employee
should complete the Form 4852 (Substitute for Form W-2, Wage and Tax Statement). The
amount of the bonus should be reported on line 7 (wages, salaries, tips, etc.) of the Form 1040.
Taxpayers or their representatives complete Form 4852 when their employer gives them an
incorrect Form W-2 or an incorrect Form 1099-R. This form is also used when the employer or
payer does not give the taxpayer a Form W-2 or Form 1099-R. This form serves as a substitute
for Form W-2, W-2¢, or 1099-R.

The IRS also requires that employers report wages, vacation allowances and bonuses paid to
employees. Specifically, IRS Publication 15 states: "Wages subject to Federal employment taxes
include all pay that you give an employee for scrvices performed. The pay may be in cash or in
other forms. It includes salaries, vacation allowances, bonuses, commissions and fringe
benefits." The Form W-2 instructions require the employer to report, “Total wages, bonuses,
prizes, and awards paid to employees during the year, * in box 1 of the W-2.

The Cen-Tex Handbook states, “Income tax is deducted from employees’ pay as required by
federal law. Social Security and Medicare taxes are also deducted from pay in an amount

determined by federal law.”

Based on records reviewed on-site, nio documents were found to reflect that Hill was issued a



W-2 or 1099 forher FY 1999 bonus in the amount of %

For FY 2000, Hill was paid a $7,170.38 bonus. After Hill left Cen-Tex, an outside auditor
determined that taxes were not paid on this bonus. At that time, Hill was issued a corrected
Form W-2. '

For FY 2001 bonus, Hill was paid a $7,155.00 bonus on January 11, 2002. Cen-Tex did not
discover Hill had recejved this bonus until an outside auditor determined taxes had not been paid.
Hill was later issued a Form 1099, since this check had been cut from the general account and -
not the payroll account. The interview with Hill disclosed that she felt she could choose from
which account she could be paid. :

Hill wae seimbursed for 176 hours of accrued leave on December 31, 2001 in the amount of
cheek cleared in 2002). Cen-Tex was not aware that Hill had been paid for this leave.
atcorrected W-2 was issued for the 176 hours after the outside auditor discovered this,

Hill provided unsigned copies of her amended tax returns for 2001 and 2002. These were not
complete returns. The check paid to the IRS indicates that these returns were not amended until
May 2004. According to documentation provided by the current Executive Director, Mary Todd,

a corrected Form W-2 wac cent to Hill on January 10, 2003 for 2001. This included the
$7.170.38 bonus and (E) (LA weered vacation payment. '

For 2001, an increase ip adinsted gross income of $4,294.00 was shown on Hi''’< amended

retum. It consisted of ¢ or the 2000 performance bonus, in addition to ﬂfﬁ ~*the
176 hour retroactive vacauon payment. The amended W-2 was increased by
Records indicate that this was offset by b'& . or additional rental property expenses and

depreciation reported.

For 2002, Hill’s amended rcturn consisted of an additional M . orthe 2001 performance
- bonus. Records indicate that this was offset by $7,422,00 for “adaruonal expenses on rental
property previously overlooked.”

Copies of Hill’s Form 278 Financial Disclosure Reports were obtained. Hill’s report signed on
November 29, 2001 does not report rental income of any kind. Rental income is not reported on
-Hill’s Financial Disclosure Report until June 27, 2004, which would be for the prior year 2003.
Fred Rogers, former Cen-Tex financial consultant, completed Hill’s amended retums.

Documents provided by Hill can be Jound at Exhibit 3. Hill's financial disclosure forms and tax
returns can be found at Exhibits 82 and 83.

Contracls

Title 45 CFR 74 requires free and open competition to the maximum extent practical, for all
contracts. Without competitive procedures, Cen-Tex had less assurance of receiving the best
prices possible.

OMB Circular A-122 requires, as a basic principle of cost allowability, proper documentation of

costs. The Circular also requires adequate contractial agreements with consultants, including

- description of service, estimate of time required, rate of compensation, and termination
Provisions. : - T e i



Cen-Tex policies, enacted in October 2001, required three formal bids for purchases costing
35,000.00 to §24,999.00. deccounting personnel were to attach the bids and Justification for
selection to the purchase requisition.

Just prior to Hill leaving Cen-Tex, she secured contracts with Fred Rogers, Terrie Jackson,
George Smith, Livvy Wilson, and Speedy Delivery. Review of records indicate that Hill did not
follow required competitive bidding procedures and did not have adequate contract agreements
such as termination clauses or ¢lear contract requirements.

See OAS work papers located at Exhibits 63 and 64,

.Fred Rogers, former CPA for Cen-Tex, provided annual audits and fiscal support to Cen-Tex
during Hill’s tenure. Rogers contract paid him $2,500.00 per month, which was an increase of
$18,000.00 from the prior year. No documentation supporting this increase was found. Atthe
time Hill issued Rogers new contract, Rogers was appealing the suspension of his certificate to
practice public accountancy for issues related to his prior work for another Head Start program
located in Houston, Texas.

According to Texas State Board of Public Accountancy, Rogers had his CPA certificate
suspended for a period of 2 years due to issues dealing with Gulf Coast Community Services
Association, a Head Start program in Houston, Texas. :

Because of his snspension, Rogers would be unablé to perform the annual audit for Cen-Tex.
Temie Jackson, was contracted by Hill to perform the annual audits. Jackson shares a billing
address with Rogers in Houston, Texas. Jackson and Rogers are now suing Cen-Tex after Cen-
Tex re-bid all contracts in order to comply with regulations.

Rogers provided very limited work papers after being scrved a subpoena for Cen-Tex records,
Rogers stated that he shredded all work papers as he was not required to keep thern. During an
interview of Rogers, he stated that he maintained all records in a house in Louisiana. After a
subpoena for records was served, however, Rogers claimed the docurnents had been shredded.
Rogers was unable to adequately explain a $900,000.00 decrease in fixed assets for Cen-Tex
from 2000 to 2001.

According to interviews, Rogers would not provide work papers to Cen-Tex for the 2001 audit.
In 2001, Rogers was paid $67,700.00 and Cen-Tex cannot find any work papers, or other
documents to support these payments. Cen-Tex had ¢lean annual audits when Rogets performed
the annual audits for Cen-Tex. After Hill left, a new audit firm was brought in to perform annual
audits which exposed several areas of concem.

In April or May 2002, Hill’s current office (ACF) requested that Rogers assist her in an on-site
review of a Head Start program in Nevada. Rogers, along with Hill, went with a review team to
review a Head Start program with problems. Terrie Jackson was also present at this review.
Typically, reviewers are randomly sclected; however, they can be specifically requested due to
experience. Jackson and Rogers were requested by Hill’s office to participate in the onsite
review with Hill. Documentation for this request can be found at Exhibit 75.

Cen-Tex cmploye@ questioned the contractors hired by Hill. George Smith was a menta] health
consultant from Chicago, Illinois. Hill would fly Smith to Bastrop, Texas several times a year
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and pay for his flight, hotel, rental car, and daily fee of $500.00. Cen-Tex employees questioned
why someone just as competent couldn’t be found in the nearby Austin, Texas area.

OAS work papers for contracts are located at Exhibit 63 and 64. Supporting documents are
located at Exhibits 71 through 79.

Contract with Family Member

Title 45 CFR 74 requires all procurement transactions to be conducted in a manner that
provides free and open competitfion, to the maximum exten! practical. Recipients of Federal
Jfunds are to avold the appearance of conflicts of interest—no employee may participate in the
selection, award or administration of a contract if a real or apparent conflict of interest is
involved. A econflict would arise if an emplovee, or any member of their immediate family has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for award

The investigation disclosed that Speedy Delivery provided general maintenance, lawn services,
and vehicle washing and maintenance for Cen-Tex. Speedy Delivery is owned and operated by
Robie and Charles Brown, Hill's sister and brother-in-law. The Browns were interviewed.
According the Browns, services were requested by Hill and the amount to be paid was
detenmined jointly by the Browns and Hill. According to Robie Brown, they worked only on
weekends.

During Hill’s interview with this agent, she was specifically asked if her sister, Robie Brown,
was involved in any way with Speedy Delivery. Hill indicated that Charles Brown was in charge
of Speedy Delivery and that Robie may have helped him out occasionally. Hill stated that Sandy
Scott supervised Brown and that she (Hill) was not involved in any capacity. Interviews with the
Browns appear to contradict Hill’s statements. The on-site determined that there were several
checks from Cen-Tex signed solely by Hill made out to Robie Brown and/or Speedy Delivery.
Robie Brown signed a majority of the invoices submitted for services.

In addition, evidence shows that Eill gave her sister access to the Cen-Tex credit cards for
purchase and maintenance purposes. According to an interview with the Board Chair, they were
not aware that Speedy Delivery was owned by relatives of Hill. Hill was the sole signature on a
majority of the checks to Speedy Delivery and Robie Brown.

According to Cen-Tex records, Macy Scott was paid $2,500.00 for the removal of three trees.
Checks were cut on June 27, 2001 and July 10, 2001 in the amount of $600.00 and $1,900.00.
Initially, when interviewed Scott stated that he cut down one tree for Cen-Tex and did some
landscaping. He amended his statement to reflect that the payment was for the removal of two
trees and lawn maintenance after he was advised that records showed the bills were for the
removal of more than one tree. According to Scott, the two trees wete removed at the LaGrange
Center and the landscaping was done at the Smithville Center. Scott is the nephew of former

. Cen-Tex employee Sandy Scott.

Sandy Scott signed as requester for the two purchase requisitions. Hill signed as Executive

Director on the purchase requisitions and also signed checks to Macy Scott. A memo from Macy

Scott to Hill is dated June 27, 2001. Coraments to Hill state “Here is the information you
requested.”

11



OAS work paper identifying payments to Speedy Deliﬁery is located at Exhibit 65. Supporting
documents for Speedy Delivery are located at Exhibits 66 through 70. Supporting documenis for

Macy Scott are located at Exhibits 80 and 81.
b,

Records reflect that during the year ending Japuary 31, 2002, Cen-Tex paid $5,451.00 to children
ranging from ages 10 to 16 years old. According to the Fair Labor Standards Act, 14 1s the
minimum age for most non-farm workers. Three children were under the age of 14. These
children were paid $8.55 per hour, which is the same rate Cen-Tex paid teacher’s assistants.
Cen-Tex paid teachers $9.61 per hour. |

Summer Hireg

hires for Cen-Tex. Hill’ orked for Cen-Tex. Sandy Scott
supervised the children. rviews of Cen-Tex employees indicate that Scott is very close to
Hill. Scott was part of a takeover Board directed by Hill after her (Hill’s) departure from Cen-
Tex. :

I | . ivere also hired by Cen-Tex as summer hires.
ntervIIRE have determined that Hill ®cided the hourly rate to pay the summer hires. Scott

would have been supervisin ppome of
these minors received over $0U0.00 in the calendar year but were not issucd 1099°s, heveral-
checks were signed by Hill without proper documentation to support payment.

The investigation uncovrﬁthat Hill hired chlldren :: family members and friends as summer

12



Windy Hill \{\ L

On Jgpe 2, 2004, Special Ageng }nd QAS auditc:ﬁ;n -
' terviewed Windy Hill. Hill provided the following inforimiation during the interview:

Hill was the Executive Director of Cen-Tex , a Head Start Grantee located in Bastrop,
Texas, from 1993 until January 6, 2002.

From Decernber 10™ through the 19" of 2001, Hill spoke with all of the Cen-Tex Board

_ members cxcept onc to telt them that she was accepting the appointment of Associate

Commissioner position for Head Start in Washington, D.C.

From December 18, 2001 through January 6, 2002, she was rarely in the Cen-Tex office.
She was mainly doing personal things to prepare for her move to Washington, D.C.

Hill did not direct or participaie in the draw down of funds that occurred between
Tanuary 8, 2002 and January 29, 2002.

In October 2001, Hill submitted a leave request to the Board for approximately 2 V4
months of annual leave or payment for the accrued leave. The Board decided they could
not afford to have her away from Cen-Tex that long, so thay decided to pay for her
annual leave.

Hill’s bonuses were paid through accounts payable instead of the payroll account because
Hill preferred to get paid in a Jump sum and be issued a Form 1099. Hill felt this was an
individual preference she could choose.

Hill’s brother-in-law, Charles Brown, did provide car-detailing services for Cen-Tex in
program year 2002. Brown contracted his services and was not an employee of Cen-Tex.
Sandy Scott supervised Brown and Hill was not involved in any capacity. Hill is not sure
how much Brown was paid for his services.

Hill’s sister, Robie Brown, did not work for Cen-Tex. Robie Brown may have helped her
husband, Charles Brown, with washing cars. Hill’s daughter worked one summer for

Cen-Tex and was not supervised by Hill. Sandy Scott supervised the summer hires.

Hill set up new contracts with vendors prior to her departure.

The Report of Interview for Windy Hill is located at Exhibit 1 and a copy of her response to
initial allegations is located at Exhibit 2.
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Allegation 1. “[Windy] Hill also was in charge when HHS rules were brokea by
improperly drawing down and depositing $149,115 in federal fands that Cen-Tex
was rot legally entitled to receive and later was ordered to retnrn,”

Facts

G My Service Computation Date as Associate Commissioner for the Head Start Bureau
wag January 6, 2002 and I took no leave (annual or sick) during the period of time in
question. (See Exhibit A)

In Janvary 2002, I was not responsible for the draw down of federal funds at Cen-Tex
Family Services, Inc. (Cen-Tex). The corrent Executive Director of Cen-Tex was -
responsible for the draw down of federl funds and the Fiscal Officerwas responsible

T for the disbursement of account payables, which occurred at the end of the Cen-Tex
grant year [Janvary 31, 2002]. (See Exhibits B and 0, p.18)

a In aletter dated March 1, 2004 to the United States Department of Health and Human
Services Departmental Appeals Board, the current Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc.
Executive Director Mary Garcia-Todd, states,

The aileged question cost was not a disallowed cost. The finding in question
relates lo the jact that Cen-Tex drew down, from the PMS system, all fimds
remairing at the end of the gramt year [Cet-Tex's grant year end is Tanuary 31.].
(See Exhibit C)

O For the month of January 2002, Cen-Tex drew down grant funds totaling
- $371,498.69. The draw down of excess grant funds by Cen-Tex took place on January
17 and January 29, 2002. (See Exhibits I and $) '

0 §$127,600.20 of the January 2002 excess draw downs was moved from the General
Fund t0 a separatc sccount, “Building Account” No. 0179515, on May 15, 2002
- ($27,680.20) and June 4, 2002 ($100,000) by the current Executive Director. (See
Exhibits E and F)

o The Regional Office VI approved the reprogramming of $140,115 in excess draw
downs of grant funds abd authorized the use of these funds for allowable costs for the
year ending Yanuary 31, 2003. (See Exhibits C and G)

Responze

1, Windy Hill, did not direct or participate in the draw down and deposit of $140,115 in
Federal grant finds. Documentation to support this fact was available on file at the Cen-
Tex Family Services, Inc, at the time of preparation of the Cen-Tex Fanily Services, Inc.
Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report January 31, 2002

T




Allegation 2, “Thousands of dellars in ananthovized pay. [Windy] Hill was
awarded “threc large bonuses...during a year and a half period,” withno
justification to indicate the basis for the “bonus” 2nd no employment policy that
provided for bonuses in the first place.

Facts

@ The Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc. Personnel Policies & Employee Handbook Tuly
. 2001 on incentive compensation {p.5) stated that, - :

Incentive compensation of up to 10 percent per year may be authorized for

emplayees based on cost réduction, or efficient performance, suggestion awards,

etc. (OMB Circular A+122)...Recommendations jor incentive compensation rttst
be written and include substantiation of efficient performance. (See Exhibit H)

@ After my annual performance evaluation and based_on a writien request from me to

the Board Chair, the Cen-Tex Board approved and anthorized a performance
incentive award for my “effective and efficient performance™ in 2000 on March 17,
2001. (See ExhibitI) The check payment of the incentive award authorized by the

- Board was signed by Board Secretary, Ruby Buie, and Board Chair, Clinton M.
Wright, was drawn from the General Fund Account. (See Exhibit J) ‘

o Afier my annual performance evahiation and based on a written request from me to
the Board Chair, the Cen-Tex Board approved and axthorized a performance
. inccative award for my “effective and efficient performance™ in 2001 on Novernber
28, 2001. The check payment of the incentive award authorized by the Board was
signed by the Board Treasurer, Jewell Hodges, and Board Chair, Clinton M. Wright,
was drawn from the General Fund Account and was paid as part of my final
compensation. (See Exhibit K)

- Response

I, Windy Hill, did not recéive any unauthorized pay. 1 did receive znnual performance
incentive awards based on Cen-Téx personnel policics and the approval of and -
authonzation by the Cen-Tex Board of Directors. .




Allegation 3. “More significantly, the review found and the ontside audit confirmed
that these bonuses where made through Cen-Tex’s accounts payable system so that
“the fands were not taxed nor reported to the IRS as income for the emplnyee [Hil]
por incladed in the employee’s W-2 fnm as income.”

 Facts

O The Board of Directors appm{re:d and authorized incentive compensation for 2000 in
the amount of $7,170.38 and for 2001 in the amount of $7,155 which were paid
through the Cen-Tex accounts payable system. (See Exhibit J 20d X)

| 1 Cen-Tex management, consistent with the Department of Treasury Internal Revenue
Service (TRS) requirements, reported the payment of each i incentive award and those
Funds were taxed. (SaﬂExhibltsL,MmdN)

Response

The reporiing of wages, tips and other compensation, whether on Form W-2 or Form
1099-MISC for tax year 2001 and 2002, was the responsibility of the Acting Executive
Director and Fiscal Officer. I had no responsibility following my departure from Cen-
Tex for dlmutmg or pamc:pahng in RS reporting.




Allegation 4. “The federal government has required Cen-Tex to pay back taxes and

penalties out of non-federal funds and pay back the amount of the bonuses to the
federal povernment.”

Faciz

(1

The Cen-Tex Famly Services, Inc. Financial Statements and Independent Auditors®
Report for the year ending January 31, 2002 did not identify any questioned costs in
the findings for the HHS program Head Start (93.600) (See Exhibit O).

The Administration for Children and Families (ACF) Regional Office VI conducted a
desk review of Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc. Financial Staternents and Independent

Awditors’ Report for the yéar ending Janoary 31, 2002. The Regional Grants Uﬂicer
for Regional Office VI affirmed in writing that,

Based on discussion with the auditor [Lockart, Atchiey & Assoviates, LL.P, S the
guestioned costs for unallowable expenditures equaled the refinidable advances—
Head Start on p.3 less interest income reported on p. 10)(3140,115). (See Exhibit
F)

Subsequent correspondence by the Regional Grants Office for Regional Office VI
documents that Cen-Tex subrnitted and the Regional Office VI received and reviewed
additional decumentation which docummented Cen-Tex had received authorization to
“reprogram this amount [$140,115]” and the alleged disallowzmce rcvnrsed (See
Exhibit G).

Response

There is no evidence to substantiate this allegation, Cen-Tex was not required fo pay
back the amount of the bonuses to the federal povernment.




Allegation 5. “Thousands of dollars in unauthorized vacation time. Upon leaving
Cen-Tex to take her job at the Head Start Bureau, Hill had Cen-Tex pay her 634
hours of accrued leave—nearly four months—even thongh Cen-Tex had a “use it or
lose it” policy—a policy she was responsible for enforcing, that allowed for the
accamulation of no more than 80 hours of Jeave and had no policy for “buying out”
leave. Moreover, Cen-Tex never budgeted for the funds used to pay for this buyont
50 the fuuds andoubtedly came out of the program services. The federal
government has asked that the cost of this improper vacation time buyout ta be
quantified and the funds returned to the federal government.”

Facts
0 My accrual of vacation was authorized, reported regularly to my immediate
supervisor, the Board Chair and Treasurer, through bi-weekly payroil information and -
is documented and reported a5 “Accrued salaries” under Cen-Tex’s Statements of :
- Financial Position in the audit report for the period ending January 31, 2001. (See
Exhibits Q and R) : | .

0 While an employee of Cen-Tex, on October 31, 2001, I requested Board of Directors
approval for two months of vacation or payment for 432 hours of accrued vacation.
The Bozrd of Directors approved my request for payment in liew of leave for 432
hours of earned vacation time. (See Exhibit T) :

Response
- The Cen-Tex Board of Directors deemed it in the best interest of the organization $o
buyout 432 hours of accrued vacation time instead of approving 432 howrs of vacation
time off. The Board of Directors were allowed by the 2001 Cen-Tex personnel policics
to pay for accrued leave, and exercised its authority to approve and pay for my
accumulated accrued leave. Forther, I was paid for 432 hours of accrued leave while stijl
am employee of Cen-Tex. ' :




AHegation 6. “Nepotism and payment of andocumented “expenses.” Numerons
procurement irregularities were noted in the federal review of Hill’s eperation,
including failure to conduct open competitions and failure to “follow the procedures
prohibiting nepotism.” An oniside audit report confirms that Hill paid vendors
“ont of pocket” and made the agency reimburse her for those payments. The report
farther stated that some of the reimborsement checks “were issued with ne

- autherization.” The federal government has asked Cen-Tex to guantify the amomat
of the impermissible expense payments and to return the fimds to the federal
governinent.”

Facty |
The “Nepotism and Conflict ‘nf Interest” policy under Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc.
Personnel Policies amd Employee Handbook 2001 states,

No employvee may hold a Jjob with Cen-Tex while he or she or @ member of his or
her immediate family (as defined below) serves on the Cen-Tex Board of
Directors or Head Start Policy Council.

Nop emplayee may hold a'fob over which a member of his or her bnmediate Jamily
exercises supervisory authority.

Immediate family for purposes of this provision is defined to irictude: busband,
son, brother, father, daughter, mother, sister, wife, mother- or father-in-law, son-
or devgiter-indow. (See Exhibit i)

All Staff Personnel were hired in compliance with Cen-Tex Family Services, Inc.
Persormel Policies and Employee Handbook 2001 and no member of my immediate
family was employed by Cen-Tex during my tenure,

" .b(,a ﬂ}'nrkcd during the summer of program year 2002, collated and
“Hssembled materials 0T distribution for parents but was not supervised by me, Other
shildren including children of agency staff were also paid for similar servi

by _—_s
brother-in-law washed the apency™s cars as a service in program year 2002 and"Was
supervised by Sandy Scott. - :

Dhiring my tenure, the expenditures of grant funds were based on the actual weekly and
bi-weekly sccounts payable needs.

During my tenure, agency did not have sny credit cards or petty cash for the urgent or
emergency purchase of services. When necessary to support program services, I paid
some vnexpected expenses out-of-pocket and sought reimbursement from the agency. At -
 the time payment was authorized, documentativn was attached to cach request.
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U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF INSPECTOR GENERAL
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS

REPORT OF INTERVIEW

_ ‘ Lﬂt - ‘

Windy Hill was intervieyed on June 2, 2004 by Special-Ageng ‘ 50 present at the
intervicw were auditord f th ce of Investigations/Office of
£

Audit Services. After advised of the nature of the Tterview and the identity of the auditors
and Special Agent, Windy Hill provided the following information, in substance:

Hill is currently the Associate Commissioner of the Fedéral Head Start Program for the
Department of Health and Human Services. She was the Executive Director of Cen-Tex Family
Services Inc. (Cen-Tex), a Head Start Grantee located in Bastrap, Texas, from 1993 until January
6,2002. She began her current position a5 Associate Commissioner on January 6, 2002.

From December 10™ through the 19 of 2001, Hill spoke with all of the Cen-Tex Board
members except one to tell them that she was accepting the appointment of the Associate

- Commissioner position for Head Start in Washington, D.C. Ken Blaschke was giot available and

was the only Board member she did not discuss her new position with.

Hill provided a list of Board members as of December 31, 2001. Members include Clinton
Wright, Jewel Hodges, Cheryl Schunidt, Harvey Steward, Ken Blaschke, Debra Dunagan, and
Rubie Buie. Wright, one of the original Board members, was the Chairperson for the Board.
Hodges was the Vice-Chairperson and Treasurer. Debra Dunagan was a parent member of the
Board. Dunagan was the Policy Council Chairman with voting rights on the Board.

On December 10, 2001, Hill met with the Head Start Regional office staff in Dallas, Texas, to
talk about the direction of Cen-Tex. Sandy Scott attended the meeting with Hill. Scott is a staff
member and was part of the transition team. At that time, part of the budget was $100,000 for
the purchase of a building in Cedar Creek, near Dallas, Texas. Also in the budget was $65,000
Tor an employes pension plan. These plans were discussed at the meeting at the regional office

in Dallas. . ‘
&_b (17

Hill stated that from December 18, 2001 through January 6, 2002, she was rarely in the Cen-Tex
office. She was mainly doing personal things to prepare for her move to Washington. This
included getting her daughter enrolled in a new high school.

belL

tnigagew Cogglugigd on  June 2, 2004 At 330 C Strect, SW Washington, 20447
B Phone Numbe !
e a 5, 2004 B ) Casa Numbsrud000959

This report is the praperly of the Gffice of Investigations and is joaned to your agency; It and its contents may not be
reproduced without written permission. The report is FOR OFFICIAL USE DNLY and jte disclosure to unauthorizey
persons is prohibited, Pubfic availability shall be determined under § 15.5.0. 552, '
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Windy Hill . : Page 2
Interview Date:  June 2, 2004 Case number: 04000959

Hill stated that she was not responsible for the draw down of federal funds at Cen-Tex_
According to Hill, the draw downs occurred between January 8" and January 29™ of 2002. At
this time, she was no longer acting in the capacity of Executive Director and had nothing to do
with the drawdowns.  The current Executive Director of Cen-Tex, Mary Garcia-Todd was
responsible for the draw down of these funds. According to a letter provided by Hill to this
agent, Todd stated thatthe alleged questioned cost was not a disallowed cost.

During the month of January 2002, Cen-Tex drew down $371,498.69. Part of this budget
-ncluded funds for the building and pension plan mentioned above. This was “on the table”
- when Hill left her position at Cen-Tex. In January 2002, the current Executive Director, Mary
Todd, moved $127,600.20 of the excess draw down from the General Fund to a separate account.
This moncy was received for specific intentions and was spent on on-going activities. The Head
Start Regional Office had approved the reprogramming of $140,115 in excess draw downs of
grant funds and authorized the use of these funds for allowable costs for the year ending Tanuary

31, 2003.

After Hill left Cen-Tex, the Board requested that the Dallas Regional Qffice conduct an
investigation. "A “trip report” was issucd by Dorothy Ferguson of the Dallas office, which
addresses most of the allegations now under scrutiny.

Hill received performance incentive awards annually from 1997 uniil her departure in Janwary

2002, Awards started at 10 percent and went up to 13 percent. Although the policy handbook

states that incentive compensation i3 up to 10 percent per year, the Board does have discretion to
- make changes if they see fit. ‘

Hill stated that according to the Personnel Policies and Employec Handbook, incentive
compensation of up to 10 percent per year can be anthorized for employces based om cost
reduction, or efficient performance, suggestion awards, ete. After receiving a favorable
performance appraisal, Hill provided a written request for a performance incentive award to the
Board Chairperson, Clinton Wright.

The Board of Directors for Cen-Tex met four titnes annually. At this fime, bonuses were
- approved. Minutgs for these meetings are kept and should be located at the Cen-Tex office,

On March 17, 2001, Hill submitted a memorandum to the Board for a performance enhancement
incentive award. This was submitted for the 2000 federal performance review. Hill received a
bonus in March of 2001 for the previous year in the amount 0* The check was dated
April 24, 2001 and was signed by Board members Ruby Buie ava vavwn Wright '

According to minutes provided by Hill of the March 17" meeting, Board attendees for this
meeting were Clinton Wright, Jewell Hodges, Ruby Buie, Harvey Steward, and Sandra Green.
These minutes were signed and submitted by Windy Hill. Hill verified that this was her
signature but did not think she would have signed the Board of Directors meeting minutes.’
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“Windy Hill | : Page 3
Intetview Date:  Juna 2, 2004 Case number: 404000959

Documents provided by Hill include a purchase réquisitiﬂn form dated January 11, 2002. Hill
initialed as the requestor and supervisor approval was signed by Board member Clinton Wright.
Fiscal approval was dated Jannary 13, 2002. This documents states the total check amount of

with a description of “bonus/transition, 13% of salary.”

Hill took very little Ieave during her employment at Cen-Tex due to work demands. She often
worked weekends. If she had errands or appointraents during the day, she did not submit a leave
slip to the Board. Hill would just make up the time afterwards. She would subrnit a leave slip if
she was going to be out of the office more than a few days. She recalls submitting a leave ship
for a week when she went on vacation to Florida.  The payroll system used at Cen-Tex is TCS

accounting software.

“According to Hill, she accrued six hours of annual leave every two weeks. Employee payfoll
records provided by Hill, indicate that in 2001 she was eaming five hours of annual leave per pay
period. The crployee bandbook allowed for only 80 hours of leave to be carried over annually.

In October 2001, Hiil submitted a leave request to the Board for approximately two and a half -
months of annual lcave or payment for the acerued leave. The Board decided that they could not
afford to have her away from Cen-Tex that long, so they decided to pay for her annual leave.

Hill stated that she requested the leave prior to knowing about the Associate Commissioner of

the Federal Head Start Program position.

As of November 2, 2001, Hill had 547 hours of annual Icave. . The following pay period, her
leave balance was at 120 hours. Ot November 1%, she was paid )¢ heck for 432
‘hours of annual leave. Board members Jewel] Hodges and Clinton anat signed this check.
Hill also received a check dated January 10, 2002 in the amount of (\b)\@) which Hill stated,
would have been for the remainder of hey annual Jeave. Hill thought it was for approximately
136 hours of leave, which was her balance as of December 31, 2001.

According to Hill, Sandy Scott, Becky Werchan, and current Executive Director Maria Garcia-
Todd were also compensated for annual leave exceeding the 80-hour limitation.

” ”Bonu:}cs were paid through accounts payable beca.usc Hill preferred to get paid in a lump sum_
and be issued a Form 1099, No employee taxes were taken out of these bonuses. Hill felt thls
was an individual pmf&rence she could choose.

A letter provided by Hill dated January 10, 2003 from current Executive Director Mary Garcia-
Todd provides a copy of a Form W-2C, Comected Wage and Tax Statement for 2002. This letter
states that during an audit it was determined that two payments made to Hill during 2001 were
not properly included in the original Form W-2. The W-2 was increased by § )i L)

Hill filed an amended tax return for-calendar year 2002. The tax return, provided by Hill was
dated May 10, 2004. Fred Rogers, of Kolheim, Rogers & Taylor in Houston, signed as the tax
et preparer, |
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Windy Hill ' ‘ : Page 4

Interview Date:  June 2, 2004 Case number. 604000959

Cen-Tex did not keep a credit card or petty cash account for payment to vendors for
maintenance. Vendors were paid by cash through the accounts payable system. A receipt would
be provided to the Treasurer, Jewell Hodges, for payment. Hodges would not sign a purchase
requisition or a check without a receipt. Services included lawn service, car washing, and
general property maintenance. A Cen-Tex credit card was available for office supplies and
materials. ‘ . '

Hill’s brother-in-law, Charles Brown, did provide car-detailing services for Cen-Tex in program
year 2002. Brown contracted his services and was not an employee of Cen-Tex, Hill stated that
it was well known in the compounity that Brown was working for Cen-Tex. Sandy Scott
supervised Brown and Hill was not involved in any capacity. Hill is not sure how much Brown
was paid for his services. ® ‘ ' -

Hill’s sister, Robie Brown, did not work for Ceg-Tex. Robie Brown may have helped her

husband, Charles Brown, with washing cars,bg b orked one summer for Cen-Tex
and was not supervised by Hill. Other employee’s child_r_c_n 4150 occasionally worked for Cen-
Tex when needed. b, ach worked one summer for

Cen-Tex. Sandy Scott supﬁrvised-ﬂw:e: summer hires for Cen-Tex,

Hill set up new contracts with vendors prior to her departure. Fred Rogers worked with Sue

Williams in fiscal matters. According to tax documents recejved by Hill, Rogers also submitted
Hill’s personal taxes. Terry Jackson was to perform the annual audit of Cen-Tex, Livy Wilson
worked with human. resources. George Smith worked with Cen-Tex approximately four to five

years. He provided mental health services for the program.

Hill was read the Federal Employee Warning Form advising her of her xights by this agent. The

letter was signed by Hill and witnessed by OAS auditof | also
presant. - 4 JVBS

- The following information was obtained by interview of Windy Hill;

SSN: E o 3 abg\&

Phone:
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